TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, 14th July, 2015

At the meeting of the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council held at Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill, West Malling on Tuesday, 14th July, 2015

Present:

His Worship the Mayor (Councillor O C Baldock), the Deputy Mayor (Councillor M R Rhodes) Cllr Mrs J A Anderson, Cllr Ms J A Atkinson, M A C Balfour, Cllr Mrs S M Barker, Cllr M C Base. Cllr Mrs P A Bates, Cllr Mrs S Bell, Cllr R P Betts, Cllr P F Bolt, Cllr V M C Branson, Cllr Mrs B A Brown, Cllr J L Botten. Cllr M A Coffin, Cllr D J Cure, Cllr R W Dalton, Cllr D A S Davis, Cllr Mrs T Dean, Cllr BTM Elks. Cllr Mrs S M Hall, Cllr S M Hammond, Cllr Mrs M F Heslop, Cllr N J Heslop. Cllr S R J Jessel, Cllr D Keeley, Cllr S M King, Cllr R D Lancaster, Cllr D Lettington, Cllr Mrs S L Luck, Cllr B J Luker, Cllr D Markham, Cllr P J Montague, Cllr Mrs A S Oakley, Cllr L J O'Toole, Cllr M Parry-S C Perry, H S Rogers. Waller. Cllr Cllr Cllr Cllr Miss J L Sergison, Cllr T B Shaw, Cllr Miss S O Shrubsole, Cllr C P Smith. Cllr Ms S V Spence. Cllr A K Sullivan. Cllr M Taylor and Cllr F G Tombolis

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors T Bishop, T I B Cannon, M O Davis, T Edmondston-Low, Mrs F A Kemp, B W Walker and T C Walker

PART 1 - PUBLIC

C 15/48 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the Code of Conduct.

C 15/49 MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council held on 19 May 2015 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

C 15/50 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor reported that he had attended many events since the Annual Meeting and highlighted a number of the most memorable including the Nepalese Tonbridge Community Collection for the earthquake in Nepal which had raised over £4,500. He mentioned a private viewing of the Magna Carta Rediscovered Exhibition in Faversham, the National Care

Home open day at Pilgrims View, Snodland and the Armed Forces Day flag raising at Tonbridge Castle. The Mayor also described meeting some of "the Few" at the Battle of Britain Memorial Day at Capel-le-Ferne.

The Mayor thanked the Deputy Mayor for attending several events and those Members who had been present at the Civic Service. He issued a reminder for his Garden Party at Hadlow College on 22 July and requested volunteers for the Tonbridge and Malling Council team for the Dragon Boat Race on 13 September. Notice of future events included the Tonbridge Christmas Festival on 22 November and the hosting of a performance at the Oast Theatre on 23 February 2016. Details of other events would be given nearer the dates.

C 15/51 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO 5.6

No questions were received from members of the public pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 5.6.

C 15/52 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO 5.5

No questions were received from Members pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 5.5.

C 15/53 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader welcomed new Members to their first Council meeting since the Annual Meeting. He referred to the full cycle of the new advisory boards and committees that had taken place and thanked both Members and staff for embracing the changes introduced since May.

At the meeting in April the Leader had reported on the Council's response to the loss of Aylesford Newsprint. He indicated that whilst service delivery to residents had not been affected, the immediate financial impact of the closure was significant. In respect of paper recycling income, new arrangements had been put in place with the Council's main waste services contractor Veolia and a report would be submitted to the new Housing and Environment Services Advisory Board.

In respect of future impact on business rate income, the Leader said Members would be aware that he had recently written to Marcus Jones, the local government minister, seeking his support for the Treasury Review to take account of unpredictable economic factors, such as the closure of Aylesford Newsprint. Due to the business size and rateable value, closure would have an extremely detrimental impact on a small local authority which was supportive of local business and invested what it could in helping grow the local economy.

The Leader reported, however, that there had been some very good news for two local businesses in winning awards at the Kent Excellence in Business Awards. Winterdale Cheesemakers in Wrotham had been successful in the Business Commitment to the Environment and congratulations were due to Robin and Carla Betts for their achievements with the business in nine years. The Kent County Football Association based in Ditton had won the Business Commitment to the Community category.

The Council was advised that 13 July marked the start of a county-wide Love Kent Hate Litter campaign that would run to the end of August. This year's campaign would focus on road-side littering with the strap line "Have a great summer - not a rubbish one – Take Your Litter Home". In Tonbridge and Malling, signs bearing the strapline were being placed in prominent places around the Borough to encourage people to dispose of their litter responsibly. The Leader also indicated that the impact of litter was reflected in the £1.2 million cost of street cleansing, hence the need for the message to be pressed home.

The Leader referred to the administration's commitment to the realisation of junction 5 east facing slips, an infrastructure improvement that would do much to alleviate the air quality issues for Platt, Borough Green and Ightham and all communities along the A20. Two years ago, he was successful in lobbying the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) to include such a scheme within its own strategic plan. The South East England Councils had also included the project in its 'Mind the Gap' transport plan for the south east. The Leader was therefore pleased to confirm the undertaking given at the last meeting of the Planning and Transportation Advisory Board that, following representations made by Councillor Steve Perry, the Council would contribute an additional £1,000 to the £5,000 committed before the election towards a Kent County Council feasibility study.

The Leader commented on some good news for the health and wellbeing of residents: according to an Active People Survey, recently carried out on behalf of Sport England, the number of adults in the Borough participating in at least one 30-minute, moderate intensity sport per week was the highest in Kent. The survey not only ranked Tonbridge and Malling as top in Kent but also placed the Borough 17th nationally.

Members were then made aware of ongoing discussions about the future of the South East LEP which presently covered the whole of Essex, Medway, Kent and East Sussex but with a federated structure whereby local authority leaders, businesses and education providers met as the Kent and Medway Enterprise Partnership. Experience to date indicated that the sheer geographical coverage of the SE LEP was unwieldy, lacked focus and decisions had been frustrating. The Leader stated that Ministers had hinted that they would consider the redrawing

of LEP boundaries and consequently the Kent and Medway Enterprise Partnership had formally proposed a new LEP for Kent and Medway. He indicated that, ironically, those were the arrangements originally promoted by all Kent districts and hoped to report the outcome at the next meeting in November.

Finally, the Leader invited Councillor Martin Coffin to make a presentation to the Council of the RoSPA Gold Medal Award in recognition of its approach to occupational health and safety. The award had been received as part of the annual scheme run by the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents at a ceremony at ExCel in London. In presenting the award to the Mayor, Councillor Coffin reported that this year a prestigious Gold Medal had been awarded to the Council for maintaining Gold Award standards for five consecutive years.

C 15/54 RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Item CB 15/40 referred from Cabinet minutes of 24 June 2015

RESOLVED: That the recommendations at Minute CB 15/40 be approved.

C 15/55 LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Item CB 15/41 referred from Cabinet minutes of 24 June 2015

RESOLVED: That the recommendations at Minute CB 15/41 be approved.

C 15/56 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2014/15

Item CB 15/42 referred from Cabinet minutes of 24 June 2015

RESOLVED: That the recommendations at Minute CB 15/42 be approved.

C 15/57 HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY UPDATE

Item GP 15/12 referred from General Purposes Committee minutes of 29 June 2015

RESOLVED: That the recommendations at Minute GP 15/12 be approved.

C 15/58 CHANGES TO CONSTITUTION - DISMISSAL OF STATUTORY OFFICERS

The report of the Director of Central Services and Monitoring Officer gave details of proposed changes to the Constitution relating to the dismissal of statutory officers as required by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

Reference was made to the provisions regarding appointment of a panel to advise on matters relating to the dismissal of a statutory officer, including the involvement of independent persons. It was recommended that a standing panel should not be appointed but only established if and when the need arose.

RESOLVED: That the amendments to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, as set out at Appendix 3 to the report, be approved to give effect to the requirements of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

C 15/59 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Central Services regarding the nomination of a person to serve as a Trustee of the Hospital of the Holy Trinity, Aylesford and the ratification of the appointment of Councillor D Davis to the Lower Medway Internal Drainage Board in place of former councillor, Mr P Homewood. Thanks were recorded to Mr Homewood for his past service.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) Councillor M Base be nominated as a Trustee of the Hospital of the Holy Trinity, Aylesford for a four year term of office; and
- the appointment of Councillor D Davis as a representative on the Lower Medway Internal Drainage Board be confirmed.

C 15/60 SEALING OF DOCUMENTS

RESOLVED: That authority be given for the Common Seal of the Council to be affixed to any instrument to give effect to a decision of the Council incorporated into these Minutes and proceedings.

The meeting ended at 7.59 pm